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Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1.
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Rhonda R. Grandy
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP 15-3090R

	1. 
	
	
	Q.
Top 3 KPIs in order of priority (ex: customer acquisition, brand awareness, lead generation, etc).
A.
I’m having a difficult time finding three things I would consider true “key performance indicators,” so I’ll just state three top goals outside of measurable changes in data: 1. Build a recognizable brand around this issue, 2. Increase public awareness around the issue and the solutions available, 3. Have the public increase utilization of the resources being offered (drug take-back boxes, addiction resources, the Montana Prescription Drug Registry for doctors and pharmacists).

	2. 
	
	
	Q.
What are you looking to achieve in the next 3 months to consider your efforts a success?
A.
The first three months into the partnership with the selected offeror will be considered a success if we have developed a name and logo to move forward with for prescription drug abuse prevention from the Attorney General’s Office, have established the first campaign message, planned the first campaign flight, and produced the first print advertisements and are close to production and placement of the first broadcast advertisements.

	3. 
	
	
	Q.
Breakdown of marketing channels you plan on leveraging to deliver on your campaign goals?
A.     I would like to preface this answer by saying if the agency who is awarded this contract advises against using any of these channels, or has suggestions of other channels to use, we are open to discussing other options.

Paid – Newspaper, billboard, television, radio, web, paid social media placements, ambient (gas station TVs/bus benches/sports and in-stadium opportunities). 
Earned – Press releases, op-ed pieces, community events, event partnerships/sponsorships.
Owned – Department of Justice web page, social media accounts (some currently exist, others will need to be started upon creation of name and logo of effort).  Brochures, posters and promotional items for placement in pharmacies/Dr.’s offices (I have a separate budget for the purchase of promotional items).

	4. 
	
	
	Q.
Campaign time frame, important/key periods therein?
A.
As soon as we can get working on the campaign, the better.  Establishing an exact timeline will be a team effort between the Prescription Drug Abuse Prevention Coordinator and the agency awarded the contract.  One key thing to keep in mind is the Attorney General cannot appear in any ads (his likeness/voice/name/etc.) once he has filed for the upcoming election year.  That should take place in January 2016, so any ads with him will have to be pulled at that time.

	5. 
	11
	3.1.1
	Q.
Flying Horse Communication developed the campaign for the Department of Justice to pass the legislation authorizing a prescription drug monitoring program.  While the research called for is not identical to what is called for in this RFP, it will provide depth and nuance to the research, and may save some money.  If awarded this contract, would it be appropriate to use some of this research as a starting point?

A.
Yes.

	6. 
	11
	3.1.2
	Q.
Are there any online properties (website, social media, etc.) that currently exist and will we be incorporating them into this campaign?

A.
There are currently a few webpages left over from the “Invisible Epidemic” campaign that took place during the previous administration that we have tried to update with more current information, or just left as is if the content was still relevant.  The URL is https://dojmt.gov/prescriptiondrugabuse/. While the Invisible Epidemic name made sense for the campaign at the time, prescription drug abuse is now a well-known issue in our communities, so while some of the content may still be relevant, a redesign of the look and feel of the site is needed, as well as adding additional content to update where the current conversation about this issue is.

	7. 
	12
	3.1.3
	Q.
Is there a geographic focus (or area of concern) we would need to concentrate our efforts on within the state?

A.
Unfortunately, at this point in time, the data sources we have available tend to not be broken down by geographic location because of the relatively small numbers and minimum “cell sizes” for reporting, which allows the epidemiologists to protect confidentiality of the victims of these poisonings/overdoses and to ensure statistically reliable rates.
However, the Board of Pharmacy is currently working on enhancements to the Montana Prescription Drug Registry, and one of those enhancements is meant to allow for more targeted data pulling.  When this enhancement comes to fruition, it could help direct the geographical placements of ads based around where we see hot beds of prescribing happening.

	8. 
	12
	3.2.1.1
	Q.
When you talk about “demographic research,” are you talking about quantitative research to develop a customer segmentation model? If so, can this be supplemented by qualitative research?

A.
Yes, and also yes.

	9. 
	13
	4.2.2.3
	Q.
Is a large not-for-profit organization acceptable for a reference, rather than state government? By like token, is a multi-jurisdictional municipality acceptable rather than a state government?
A.
Yes, those are both acceptable.

	10. 
	14
	4.2.2.7
	Q.
Do you want to conduct a baseline and tracking study to determine the effectiveness of the campaign?

A.
Since we are focused more on spreading a message than selling a product, we are less concerned with tracking the number of impressions, views or visits that our ads or webpages receive.  Rather than focusing on a “return on investment” dollar number, we would like to champion the idea of “return on engagement,” which is more difficult to measure.  So, if a “baseline and tracking study” would help with this measurement, then yes, we would be interested in that possibility if the offeror thinks it is cost effective in terms of time and resources.

	11. 
	14
	4.2.3
	Q.
The RFP asks for two 30 second television advertisements or public service announcements. As online broadcast is not limited to 30 seconds, is it permissible to submit work in the region of 45 seconds?
A.
Yes, that is acceptable.

	12. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
Social media ads/promoted posts (design): Will we be responsible for keeping social media properties supplied with content and/or updating properties during the course of the campaign?

A.
The awardee will be responsible for supplying some content for the page that matches the campaign flights, including graphics that can be used as background images, images attached to posts, graphics for promoted posts and ads.  However, they will not be responsible for the management of the pages or supplying further content for the pages.  

	13. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
Print Ad Web Conversion: Is this in reference to a translatable digital campaign?

A.
What “Print Ad Web Conversion” is referring to is being able to take the graphics used in our print ads and convert them for use online, whether that means simply resizing, reimagining the ad as a banner that rotates through a few slides, or changing the resolution and file types to fit the web platforms.  Sorry I do not know the technical terms, but basically I am trying to emphasize not having to reinvent the ads for the web, just converting the work that was already done to create the print ads.

	14. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
Will we need to submit an hourly rate for our company or can we submit task pricing?

A.
If the state understands the question, either option is acceptable.  Please keep in mind you must also include the total spend for the initial contract term.

	15. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
Is a single blended rate for all services acceptable?

A.
If the State understands the question, yes, that is acceptable.  Please keep in mind you must also include total estimated spend for the initial contract term.

	16. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
Regarding “travel time,” what kind of travel is required other than visits to your offices in Helena, MT?  How often?   

A.
If there is a need to travel to a different city/town to shoot video and/or photos for use in the advertisements, that should be taken into account in the travel budget.

	17. 
	11
	3.1.1
	Q.
“According to statistics from the Office of Epidemiology and Scientific Support, between 2010 and 2013, 484 Montanans died from prescription drug overdoses.  In that same time period, more than 7200 hospital admissions and emergency department encounters were attributed to poisoning by prescription drugs.”

The report located online (PrescriptionDrugDeaths_Montana_2014.) listed information from 2003-2012. Therefore, could you provide more information about the 2010-2013 data? Specifically:

A. What is the demographic profile(s) of the 484 Montanans who died?

B. What is the geographic profile(s) of the 484 Montanans who died (i.e. where did they live)?

C. What is the demographic profile(s) of the 7,200 Montanans who were hospitalized?

D. What is the geographic profile(s) of the 7,200 Montanans who died?

A. Geographic profiles of the Montanans who died are not available to protect patient confidentiality.  Only general geographic profiles of the hospitalized Montanans are available.  Please refer to the demographic documents accompanying this RFP.

	18. 
	11
	3.1.1
	Q.
“Current data shows there are subsets of the population that suffer negative impacts from prescription drug abuse more widely than others.  Those groups currently include but are not limited to adults ages 35-60, Native Americans, current active or formerly active military personnel, and students ages 12-22. However, these groups may not be the only demographic subsets disproportionately affected by prescription drug abuse, or may not represent the groups to best target with marketing messages.  That is one reason why demographic research will be so important to these media campaigns.”
A. Is there a more recent study from the Office of Epidemiology and Scientific Support and could you please provide the “current data” in its entirety?

B. If “no” to #1, please provide the following information:

i. 
What percentage is each of these subsets at risk?

ii. 
Please list the other groups that “may” be at risk and what percentage is each of these groups at risk?

iii. What specific “demographic research” is being referred to — is this existing research? Research not yet undertaken/completed? Media demographic research? Please be specific.

A. i. Please refer to the demographic documents accompanying this RFP.

ii. Data made available after the initial publishing of this RFP shows Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome is seriously increasing in Montana.  Therefore, pregnant women are another group that can be added to that list, however there is no rate data for “how” at-risk they are.  Additionally, anyone who has had a substance abuse problem in the past is at greater risk for prescription drug abuse, but once again there is no rate data to quantify their risk.

iii. This is referring to any additional demographic research the offeror thinks is necessary to determine the most important audiences to target.

	19. 
	11
	3.1.2
	Q.
“Each selected demographic group should have its own targeted messaging, and messages should debut in separate but connected media ‘flights’ through the duration of the contract.”

A. Please clarify what you mean by separate but connected media flights throughout the duration of the contract?
B. A number of audiences (referred to above as “subsets”) are listed but could you further specify how many target audiences you expect the funding to cover with effective reach and frequency? Please provide the number of subsets as well as a list of those subsets.
C. How many geographic markets (i.e. cities/towns) do you expect the funding to cover with effective reach and frequency? Are there geographic areas of the state that need more focus based on current deaths and hospitalizations? Please list the communities you intend to target and please be specific, “statewide” is not enough information.
D. Do you have a predetermined expectation regarding the length of the flights and how much time in total (i.e. number of weeks) you anticipate they will cover? If so, please specify.
A. A - The expectation is that over the course of the three years, the campaign will have different flights that have a similar look and feel, but a different message to target the intended demographic group.
So, let’s pretend for Fall 2015 we want to focus on use by middle to high school aged students and we want to target their parents with a message of, “Make sure you’re properly storing and disposing of your Rx drugs because X,Y, Z…”  We develop those ads with our logo, our slogan and call to action, imagery and copy that reflects a certain look and feel.  Our next flight in Spring 2016 targets Native Americans because the overdose rates are higher for that demographic.  The message here is about how deadly Rx drugs actually are.  So the messages between flights has changed, but the look and feel remain similar, with the signature logo, campaign name, and possibly call to action, etc. remaining consistent.  That way, even if a viewer is not a member of the target audience, they’re still getting some of the key parts of the message.
B – The exact subsets would be up for discussion with the awardee, but in a perfect world, here are the currently identified groups that would be great to target: 1. Adults 35-60 (highest OD rates age demographic) 2. Middle to high school aged youth/parents of this group (to hopefully plant a prevention message early on) 3. Native Americans (highest OD rates race demographic) 4. Pregnant women (increasing rates of Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome in MT newborns) 5. Active military and veterans (higher Rx abuse rates than other substances) 
C - Unfortunately, at this point in time, most of the data sources we have available tend to not be broken down by geographic location because of the relatively small numbers and minimum “cell sizes” for reporting, which allows the epidemiologists to protect confidentiality of the victims of these poisonings/overdoses and to ensure statistically reliable rates.

However, the Board of Pharmacy is currently working on enhancements to the Montana Prescription Drug Registry, and one of those enhancements is meant to allow for more targeted data pulling.  When this enhancement comes to fruition, it could help direct the geographical placements of ads based around where we see hot beds of prescribing happening.

D – We do not have a predetermined expectation about the length of time of the campaign flights, this is an area where we relay on the offerors’ expertise to help us maximize our reach.  Of course we need them to be long enough to make the intended impact, but also not so long that we are overspending when we could be using those funds to promote messaging to other subsets.

	20. 
	11
	3.1.2
	Q.
“Are evergreen, well planned and executed, while allowing for flexibility to be responsive to current events and unanticipated situations;”

Please specifically define what you mean by “evergreen” … in what ways and for what duration?
A.
By ‘evergreen,’ we mean able to retain relevance long into the future.  Specifically, we want to create ads and an online presence that can continue to be useful and pertinent past the next three years and continuing into the future, even if a new administration inherits the work we do.

	21. 
	11
	3.1.2
	Q.
“Are integrated, comprehensive, and market research-based;” 

Please provide links to any and all market research not requested above that you have to date. If the research is not online, could you please indicate how best we can view it?
A.
Please refer to the demographic documents accompanying this RFP.

	22. 
	11
	3.1.2
	Q.
“Build in opportunities for evaluation, and include a strong impact, process, and intermediate outcome evaluation component;”

Does the state have specific Key Performance Indicators outside of those listed in 3.1.3 it intends to track? What have you tracked in the past?

A. I’m having a difficult time finding three things I would consider true “key performance indicators,” so I’ll just state three top goals outside of measurable changes in data: 1. Build a recognizable brand around this issue, 2. Increase public awareness around the issue and the solutions available, 3. Have the public increase utilization of the resources being offered (drug take-back boxes, addiction resources, the Montana Prescription Drug Registry for Dr.s and pharmacists)

However, we are interested in hearing your insights on how best to measure the engagement the public is having with the campaign, in whichever way you think that can best be done.
Since the current administration has not yet partnered with any advertising agency or firm to provide media/marketing services for this issue, we have not had any efforts to track yet.

	23. 
	12
	3.1.3
	Q.
“…support the following goal areas:

· Deaths from prescription drug overdoses are reduced
· Hospital admissions due to prescription drug overdoses are reduced

· Percentage of high school students who report having taken a prescription drug without a doctor’s prescription is reduced

· Rate of prescription drug-involved DUI is reduced”

A. What evaluation methods (or reporting received from this or other agencies) will the State use to gather updated data on the stated goals? 

B. How often is this data collected and evaluated?
A. Deaths from prescription drug overdoses are reduced – This data is collected through the Office of Epidemiology and Scientific Support and published in the Poisoning Deaths Attributed to Prescription Drugs report on an annual basis.  This data is gathered from death certificates.
Hospital admissions due to prescription drug overdoses are reduced – This data is collected through the Office of Epidemiology and Scientific Support and published in the Hospital Admissions and Emergency Department Encounters Attributed to Poisoning by Prescription Drugs report on an annual basis using de-identified hospital discharge data sets through a Memorandum of Agreement with the Montana Hospital Association.
Percentage of high school students who report having taken a prescription drug without a doctor’s prescription is reduced – This data is collected through two surveys, both self-reported from students.  The Prevention Needs Assessment (PNA) is conducted every other year during even-numbered years by the Montana Department of Health and Human Services Addiction and Mental Disorder Division.  Students in grades 8, 10 and 12 self-report their data.  The Youth Risk Behavior Survey is conducted every other year during odd-numbered years by the Office of Public Instruction.  Students in grades 9, 10, 11 and 12 self-report their data.  We will look at both surveys, but will use the YRBS as the standard by which to measure progress.
Rate of prescription drug-involved DUI is reduced – This data is collected through the Department of Justice’s Forensic Science Division and published annually in the Toxicology Report.


	24. 
	12
	3.2.1
	Q.
“3.2.1.1 The offeror must demonstrate that they have the full capacity to provide, at a minimum, the following media services to support the work described in this RFP.
The items listed after this statement in 3.2.1 are very similar in nature to the following sections:

· Demographic Research and Analysis — similar to section 4.2.2.5 (credentials and capabilities in market research, media buying and placement) 
· Advertising Strategy Development and Implementation Creative Concept Development

· Print, Web and Broadcast Advertising Production — similar to section 4.2.2.6 (in-house production capabilities)
· Media Buying and Placement — similar to section 4.2.2.5 (credentials and capabilities in market research, media buying and placement)
· Media Monitoring and Response — similar to sections 4.2.2.7 (confirm, track, analyze, evaluate and adjust media) and 4.2.2.9 (select media vendors and how we monitor for accuracy and compliance). 
· Ongoing Evaluation” — 4.2.2.9 (select media vendors and how we monitor for accuracy and compliance). 
Since both of these sections are scored, could you please explain the differences in what you are asking for in 3.2.1 and the section 4 items mentioned above? What are you looking for in each section that differentiates it from the others?

A.    3.2.1.1 Demographic Research and Analysis - For this answer, please share your plan for conducting demographic research for the Prescription Drug Abuse Prevention campaign in particular.  We currently have some data available about the scope of this problem in Montana in terms of which population groups are disproportionately affected.  Will your agency be looking to supplement that data in any way?  If so, how do you plan on doing that?  Please include logistics and methodologies.
         4.2.2.5 Market Research – The emphasis here is finding out how to best reach the different demographics that have been pinpointed as the key audiences.  How does your agency find out the answers to these types of questions:  What are their media viewing habits?  How do they like to be communicated with?  What types of messages resonate?  What are the challenges in getting through to these groups?
         3.2.1.1 Advertising Strategy Development and Implementation – What is your process for using the demographic data and other information available to develop a full marketing campaign strategy?  This does not refer to creative concepts, but rather to how to best reach the target audiences, how to map out the best use of money and how to capitalize on different trends in media (i.e. more people take road trips during summer so that is a better time to get messages up on billboards, etc.)
         3.2.1.1 Creative Concept Development – Your process for using the demographic data and market research information available to develop appropriate messaging that speaks to each target audience.  Will you first decide on the type of imagery you want to utilize?  Do you mock up a handful of different concepts and then vet them each out? Etc.
         3.2.1.1 Print, Web and Broadcast Advertising Production – Please talk about your preferred methods for ad development, including development of imagery, copy, video, etc.  
         4.2.2.6 In-House Production Capabilities – Please describe which services/skills you are able to provide in-house, and which ones you subcontract out.

         3.2.1.1 Media Buying and Placement – What will you consider when buying media placements for this campaign?  How will you maximize reach with your buying and placement strategy?
         4.2.2.5 Media Buying and Placement – In this section, tie in your media buying approach to your market research abilities and experience.
         3.2.1.1 Media Monitoring and Response – “Media” here refers to the news media.  I apologize for the lack of clarity.  It’s important that we be able to watch how the news media are reacting to our efforts and capitalize on positive opportunities and respond appropriately to negative feedback.
         4.2.2.7 Confirm, Track, Analyze, Evaluate and Adjust Media – Describe your experiences with ensuring your ads are working as intended.  If you were to encounter an issue, how would you change your approach to enhance the effectiveness of the campaign or ads in question?
         4.2.2.9 Select Media Vendors and Monitor for Accuracy and Compliance – How will you determine the best stations/papers/websites/billboard companies to place ads with, and what are your procedures for following up with them to ensure the ads got the agreed-upon placements?

	25. 
	14
	4.2.2.5, 4.2.2.6, 4.2.2.7, 4.2.2.9
	Q.
Since these sections are very similar to section 3.2.1 could you please explain the differences in what you are asking for in 3.2.1 and the section 4 items? What are you looking for in each section that differentiates it from the others?

A.
3.2.1.1 Demographic Research and Analysis - For this answer, please share your plan for conducting demographic research for the Prescription Drug Abuse Prevention campaign in particular.  Yes, we currently have some data available about the scope of this problem in Montana in terms of which population groups are disproportionately affected.  Will your agency be looking to supplement that data in any way?  If so, how do you plan on doing that?  Please include logistics and methodologies.

         4.2.2.5 Market Research – The emphasis here is finding out how to best reach the different demographics that have been pinpointed as the key audiences.  How does your agency find out the answers to these types of questions:  What are their media viewing habits?  How do they like to be communicated with?  What types of messages resonate?  What are the challenges in getting through to these groups?

         3.2.1.1 Advertising Strategy Development and Implementation – What is your process for using the demographic data and other information available to develop a full marketing campaign strategy?  This does not refer to creative concepts, but rather to how to best reach the target audiences, how to map out the best use of money and how to capitalize on different trends in media (i.e. more people take road trips during summer so that is a better time to get messages up on billboards, etc.)

         3.2.1.1 Creative Concept Development – Your process for using the demographic data and market research information available to develop appropriate messaging that speaks to each target audience.  Will you first decide on the type of imagery you want to utilize?  Do you mock up a handful of different concepts and then vet them each out? Etc.

         3.2.1.1 Print, Web and Broadcast Advertising Production – Please talk about your preferred methods for ad development, including development of imagery, copy, video, etc.
         4.2.2.6 In-House Production Capabilities – Please describe which services/skills you are able to provide in-house, and which ones you subcontract out.

         3.2.1.1 Media Buying and Placement – What will you consider when buying media placements for this campaign?  How will you maximize reach with your buying and placement strategy?

         4.2.2.5 Media Buying and Placement – In this section, tie in your media buying approach to your market research abilities and experience.  

         3.2.1.1 Media Monitoring and Response – “Media” here refers to the news media.  I apologize for the lack of clarity.  It’s important that we be able to watch how the news media are reacting to our efforts and capitalize on positive opportunities and respond appropriately to negative feedback.

         4.2.2.7 Confirm, Track, Analyze, Evaluate and Adjust Media – Describe your experiences with ensuring your ads are working as intended.  If you were to encounter an issue, how would you change your approach to enhance the effectiveness of the campaign or ads in question?

         4.2.2.9 Select Media Vendors and Monitor for Accuracy and Compliance – How will you determine the best stations/papers/websites/billboard companies to place ads with, and what are your procedures for following up with them to ensure the ads got the agreed-upon placements?

	26. 
	14
	4.2.2.6
	Q.
“Your firm’s in-house production capabilities.”

Does this include a list of equipment or just skill set?

A.
General skill set.

	27. 
	14
	4.2.2.10
	Q.
“Industry or media awards or honors your firm received in the last three years.  Include the full name and contact information of the organization bestowing them.”

What is the criteria you are using to score this section? Is it:

A. The number of awards?

B. The perceived prestige of the award? 

C. Other? 

Please provide specific criteria regarding how this section will be scored.

A.
 This section will be scored on the scope and variety of awards and honors received.

	28. 
	14
	4.2.3
	Q.
“Offeror shall provide examples of past production work, including three print advertisements and two 30 second television advertisements or public service announcements.  At least one print example and one broadcast example must come from the same campaign.”

Since an explanation of the purpose of the print ads/TV spots is not required in this section, what is the specific criteria you are using to score:

A. The three individual print ads?

B. The two individual TV spots?

C. The brand cohesion?

Please be specific to each point outlined above.

A.
The reason no explanation of the purpose of the print ads and TV spots has been requested is because that is not something we will get to preface our audience with as we develop and deploy our Rx Drug Abuse Prevention marketing materials.  Therefore, each work example should be clear enough that the intended message speaks for itself.  Specifically, the materials will be scored based on:

PRINT ADS - Overall impression of the ads, including visual balance of copy and imagery, impact of copy, clarity of messaging and branding, call to action, professionalism and quality.

TV SPOTS – Overall impression of the ads, including ability to hold audience’s attention, clarity and impact of messaging and branding, call to action, professionalism and quality of audio and video.
BRAND COHESION – If I saw the print ad one day, and the TV spot the next week, would I understand they were trying to promote the same idea/product/company in terms of look, feel and content?

	29. 
	14
	4.2.3
	Q.
“The works samples must be submitted on a compact disc (CD) or universal serial bus (USB) flash drive.”  

May we also place the print ads and screen captures from the TV spots in the printed book as well?  

A.
Yes, that is acceptable to the State, however, it will not affect scoring.

	30. 
	14
	4.2.3
	Q.
“…including three print advertisements”.


Are billboards or posters acceptable to submit as a “print ad”?
A.
Yes. Print advertisement examples may include posters, newsletters, billboards, brochures, newspaper ads, magazine ads, even a print out of a stationary web ad, etc.  A broader definition would be any self-contained piece that does not have a movement or audio component to it (i.e. no web ads that cycle through multiple slides).

	31. 
	14
	4.2.3
	Q.
“…including three print advertisements and two 30 second television advertisements or public service announcements.”

May we also show online banner advertising and will it be factored into the scoring?

A.
You may use an online banner ad as one of your print advertising examples (as long as it does not cycle through multiple slides); however, work examples exceeding the specified number asked for will not be considered.

	32. 
	15
	5.1
	Q.
“The State has a maximum funding amount of $800,000 available for this project over the course of three years, to be spent approximately as follows: year one - $350,000, year two - $300,000, year three - $150,000. At least 60% of the funds must be allocated for media placement. Proposals exceeding the maximum funding amount of $800,000 will disqualify the response from further consideration.”

A. Is it your expectation that the allotted funding will be able to address all relevant audiences across all of the state each year for this budget? 

B. Or, is it the state’s expectation that over the course of three years, the state would address different relevant audiences in different locations around the state? If yes, please explain expectations in detail.
A. B – The expectation is that over the course of the three years, the campaign will have different flights that have a similar look and feel, but a different message to target the intended demographic group.  
So, let’s pretend for Fall 2015 we want to focus on use by middle to high school aged students and we want to target their parents with a message of, “Make sure you’re properly storing and disposing of your Rx drugs because X,Y, Z…”  We develop those ads with our logo, our slogan and call to action, imagery and copy that reflects a certain look and feel.  Our next flight in Spring 2016 targets Native Americans because the overdose rates are higher for that demographic.  The message here is about how deadly Rx drugs actually are.  So the messages between flights has changed, but the look and feel remain similar, with the signature logo, campaign name, and possibly call to action, etc. remaining consistent.  That way, even if a viewer is not a member of the target audience, they’re still getting some of the key parts of the message.

	33. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
“Provide an itemized budget with narrative justification, including all services for which you charge and the amount you would charge for the initial contract term (May 1, 2015 – April 30, 2016). List any hourly rates charged for each item and list the estimated hours needed for each task during the contract term.  Include total estimated spend for the initial contract term.”

I think it is premature to ask us to determine the number of hours in the first year when we haven’t been awarded the contract and therefore have not been able to have a conversation with the client regarding planning. We typically don’t “assume” how a client wants to spend funds, but rather work with the client to determine the best use. Since there is still some discussion surrounding target audiences and geographic markets, it seems premature to make certain assumptions regarding tactics.

Question: Wouldn’t it make more sense if this section was scored on lowest hourly cost per item rather than the entire initial contract budget? That is typically how other state RFPs draft this section.
Question: If you intend to score based on how this section is originally written is the equation going to be calculated on the total $350,000 in year one or a breakdown based on what percentage goes to media and what percentage goes to the agency/outside production. For example, do we receive more points if we put 75% of the budget to media and 25% to agency/outside production?

A. Please try to allocate funds as accurately as possible, even though planning with the State cannot take place until after the contract is awarded.

The cost scoring will be based solely on the total cost for the initial contract term (year one).  At least 60% of the funds must be allocated for media placement, but offerors are not awarded extra points during the evaluation for allocations over that ratio.

	
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
“Brand Development/Naming of Campaign”
Please define what you mean by the above language:

A. Do you mean campaign/creative development? 

B. Or, do you want this campaign to have a program name such as Montana Department of Transportation’s “Plan 2 Live”?
C. Other? Please provide more detail than just “yes” or “no” to the above questions.

A.
B – The previous administration had called their Rx Drug Abuse Prevention efforts “The Invisible Epidemic,” which was great at the time, however this is an issue that has very much become part of the public awareness since that time.  We would like to update the branding of this campaign with something that is descriptive and easy to remember/associate for the public so they know where to turn for resources and help.

	34. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
“Logo Creation/Design”

Again, please define what you mean by the above language. 

A. Do you want a specific “logo” for this program (i.e. branded separately from the Attorney General’s office)?

B. Or, do you anticipate we will also use the Attorney General’s logo in the campaign?

C. Other? Please provide more detail than just “yes” or “no” to the above questions.
A.
Yes to both A and B – We anticipate using the AG’s logo to associate this effort with this Office because I believe it lends some credence to the effort, but it’s also important to reinforce the branding of this particular effort and to give a visual symbol that can be associated with the messaging we will disseminate.

	35. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
“Print Ad Web Conversion”

Please define what you mean by the above language:

A. Are you requesting a print ad be made into a format that can be placed on a website?

B. Or, are you asking for online banner ad creative?

A.
Both A and B.  We do not want to be “reinventing the wheel” when creating web ads and banner ads if it is possible to take the content from print ads and retrofit it to the web/banner specifications.  We realize that there’s more work to it than we’re making it sound in our description because of the differences in sizing, and that it’s likely copy will need to be edited to fit, etc.

	36. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
“PowerPoint Template Design”

A. Do you anticipate the need for a PowerPoint Template Design? 

B. And if so, how will it be used? 

C. Who will use it? 

D. Where will it be used?

A.
Yes, we will need a PPT template design in line with the brand.  It will be used to give presentations to partners that we work with, such as law enforcement, medical providers, neighborhood/community groups, etc. and also to give presentations to groups who invite us to speak to them about Rx drug abuse, such as schools, conferences, trade groups, etc.  The Prescription Drug Abuse Prevention Coordinator will be the main person to use it, but it would not be out of the question for other members of the Attorney General’s Office and even the Attorney General himself to use it at the appropriate presentations.

	37. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
“Ongoing Client Counsel”

Please define the difference between “ongoing client counsel” and “general account management”?

A. General Account Management – Any administrative tasks that you plan to charge the state for that don’t fit into any of the other defined areas.
Ongoing Client Counsel – Providing advice and guidance for the client outside of meeting about the campaign specifics.  This could include guidance on community partnerships, conferring on the direction of the social media pages (which will be handled by the state), or providing assistance to the state if confronted with a PR emergency (drafting media talking points, providing advice on posts to website, etc.).

	38. 
	16
	5.3, 5.4, 5.5
	Q.
These sections are mislabeled on Page. 3 in the gray box requiring our initials.
A.
Section 5.3 should read as follows: Commission Rate. Section 5.4 should read as follows: Management of Media Campaign Budget. Section 5.5 should read as follows: Restricted use of Funds. 

	39. 
	16
	5.5
	Q.
“Restricted Use of Funds”
A.
Section 5.4.1 should read 5.5.1 and Section 5.4.2 should read 5.5.2.

	40. 
	NA
	NA
	Q.
Have any prior media campaigns been executed by your organization targeting prescription drug abuse prevention? In what time frame did prior campaigns run? What was the criteria for measuring success and was the campaign successful?

If a previous campaign has run, please provide the following:

A. Media plan(s)

B. A way to review the campaign materials

C. Name of the agency/contractor that produced those campaigns, if applicable.
A.
The current administration has not partnered with any advertising agency or firm to provide media and/or marketing services for this issue.

	41. 
	NA
	NA
	Q.
Has there been any prior earned media campaigns or efforts i.e. press releases, community events, editorials, news conferences? What was the criteria for measuring success and was the campaign successful?

If a previous PR effort has run, please provide the following:

A. What were the tactics implemented?

B. A way to review the campaign materials
C. Name of the agency/contractor that produced those campaigns, if applicable.
A. The overall answer is no.  The current administration has not partnered with any advertising agency or firm to provide media and/or marketing services for this issue.
However, on a smaller scale, the Prescription Drug Abuse Coordinator, who was hired in September 2014, has sent a limited number of press releases and conducted a limited number of media interviews for individual news stories since being brought on board.  Prior to that, the federal Drug Enforcement Administration’s semiannual National Prescription Drug Take-Back Day was promoted by the Department of Justice through a press release listing local take-back event locations.  However, the DEA has since halted its nationally sanctioned Take-Back Day.

Through the above mentioned efforts there have been no success metrics implemented.  

	42. 
	NA
	NA
	Q.
Is there currently any type of program in the state that easily provides a way for Montanans to recycle their unused prescription drugs? Some type of repository? Has there been a program in the past?

A.
Yes, for Montanans in some communities.  There are Rx drug take-back boxes at a number of law enforcement locations throughout the state.  We have budgeted (separately, not in this budget) to expand that program through a grant program that would reoccur for the next three years.  Here is the current list of all drop boxes we are aware of:  https://dojmt.gov/prescriptiondrugabuse/operation-medicine-cabinet/

	43. 
	NA
	NA
	Q.
Is there any other entity in the state of Montana tackling this issue (hospitals, pharmacies)? And if so could you please provide us information on what organizations are working on this problem and what they are doing?

A.
Yes!  There are many other stakeholders also diligently working toward eliminating prescription drug abuse in Montana.  The ones we are currently familiar with include:
The Montana Medical Association – currently building a website that will focus on educating providers on proper prescribing practices, how to work with chronic pain patients, how to best use the Montana Prescription Drug Registry (which is administered by the Montana Board of Pharmacy, through the Department of Labor, as an FYI), and will also include an area with free and reduced-cost continuing education courses for credit for the providers.  The site will also have a public education area including information about the laws in Montana regarding prescription drugs, and safety and wellness messages as well as resource lists for the public.  We will be contributing funds to this effort and will have some measure of branding on the site as well.
The Montana Pharmacy Association – constantly facilitating discussions with their membership regarding pharmacists’ role in prescription drug abuse prevention.  This includes increasing pharmacist use of the drug registry, calling physicians to verify prescriptions are legitimate before filling them, and working with law enforcement if they suspect a patient is diverting (selling) their medication.

Missoula Youth Forum/Helena Youth Connections/St. Peter’s Hospital Medication Safety Task Force/Great Falls NeighborWorks– community groups like these are facilitating discussions about what is happening in their own cities, and in some cases putting together PSA campaigns or getting a drug drop-box for their local use.

Boys and Girls Clubs of Montana – teaching a curriculum to their members that focuses on making positive choices.  This curriculum is called SmartMoves and features a specific module on prescription drug abuse prevention.
Law enforcement – law enforcement officers and organizations generally sit on community groups and lend their perspective to these groups.  They are essential stakeholders in this effort. 

	44. 
	NA
	NA
	Q.
Please provide the name and title of the individual members of the scoring committee.

A.
The committee members have not yet been determined. 

	45. 
	NA
	NA
	Q.
Please provide a list of the agency’s/company’s that submitted questions for this proposal.
A.
The Wendt Agency, 8KPAX, Banik, Better World Advertising, Flying Horse, and Partners Creative. 

	46. 
	NA
	NA
	Q.
Do you currently have an existing relationship with an agency/company?

A.
No.  The current administration has not partnered with any advertising agency or firm to provide media and/or marketing services for this issue.

	47. 
	
	
	Q.
Can you please share who will sit on the scoring committee?
A.
See answer to question #45.

	48. 
	
	
	Q.
What other agencies submitted questions for this RFP?
A.
See answer to question #46.

	49. 
	
	
	Q.
Are you working with an existing agency or agencies? If so, who and how long have they been providing services?

A.
No, the current administration has not partnered with any advertising agency or firm to provide media/marketing services for this issue.

	50. 
	
	
	Q.
Is there a current website, social pages or any existing marketing materials available to reference?

A.
There are a few webpages that currently exist that are sort of “leftovers” from the previous administration’s Rx drug abuse prevention efforts.  The URL for the main page is:  https://dojmt.gov/prescriptiondrugabuse/

	51. 
	
	
	Q.
Have there been any prior media campaigns executed by the Attorney General’s Office specifically targeting prescription drug awareness? If so, what was the measure of success/failure? What time frame did they run and can those campaigns be made available for review?

A.
No, the current administration has not partnered with any advertising agency or firm to provide media/marketing services for this issue.

	52. 
	14
	4.2.3
	Q.
When supplying print ads can we include multiple executions for one creative concept. For example, on Print Ad #1 can we include a print concept that has a couple different executions and have that count as only one example?
A.
No.  Please only submit one execution per example.

	53. 
	14
	4.2.3
	Q.
Please further define Print Ad as a sample. Does this include all print – i.e. newspaper, magazine, outdoor, brochure, etc?

A.
Print advertisement examples may include posters, newsletters, billboards, brochures, newspaper ads, magazine ads, even a print out of a stationary web ad, etc.  A broader definition would be any self-contained piece that does not have a movement or audio component to it (i.e. no web ads that cycle through multiple slides).

	54. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
Can you clarify the maximum funding figure we should be using when putting together a budget for May 1, 2015 – April 30, 2016?
A.
Please use the maximum funding figure of $350,000 for the initial contract term.

	55. 
	15
	5.2.1
	Q.
Can you please further define how you want this answer presented? The question does not seem to match up to the scoring matrix on page 18.
A.
Please list either the hourly rate you will charge for each task and the number of hours you plan to spend on each task in the initial contract period (year one).  Then add up the costs to get to a total amount.  That is the amount that will be considered in the cost evaluation portion (should not exceed $350,000 for the initial contract period). Please keep in mind you must also include the total spend for the initial contract term.

	56. 
	5
	1.4.2
	Q.
Can you share the name of the offerors who have submitted questions pertaining to this RFP?
A.
See answer to question #46.

	57. 
	11
	3.1.1
	Q.
Is there an evaluation report from any previous marketing or communication campaigns available for review by offerors to help inform this campaign effort?
A.
Unfortunately, no.

	58. 
	11
	3.1.2
	Q.
Is there a current website or social media account(s) to reference in regards to previous efforts for the Montana Attorney General’s Office related to prescription drug abuse prevention?

A.
There are a few webpages that currently exist that are sort of “leftovers” from the previous administration’s Rx drug abuse prevention efforts.  The URL for the main page is:  https://dojmt.gov/prescriptiondrugabuse/ However, please keep in mind we are looking to find a new brand, logo, look and feel for our campaign.  

	59. 
	11
	3.1.2
	Q.
Has there been any previous media effort to address prescription drug abuse in Montana? Could you please summarize the effort, authors and timing of prior campaigns related to prescription drug abuse prevention or drug take-back programs and the results of those campaigns?

A.
The previous administration conducted a media effort to address Rx drug abuse in Montana.  Unfortunately, I have no further information about it.  

	60. 
	11
	3.1.2
	Q.
Has any firm provided or is any firm currently providing media services for the Montana Attorney General’s Office related to prescription drug abuse prevention? If so, who is the firm or firms?

A.
No, the current administration has not partnered with any advertising agency or firm to provide media/marketing services for this issue.

	61. 
	12
	3.1.3
	Q.
The final paragraph of this section states:
“These campaigns will utilize paid media outlets… It may include the development, promotion, or management of earned media placements…but will require coordination with these efforts at the state, county, and community level.”

Has the Department of Justice/Attorney General’s Office established any existing partnerships, grantee programs or other existing prescription drug abuse prevention relationships with any other individuals, programs or agencies related to this campaign? If so, can you describe the expectations for these existing relationships?

A. Yes.  Most of the existing partnerships consist mainly of an advisory relationship between the AGO and the law enforcement, medical provider or community group.  The expectation is this campaign should look to capitalize on and share with those local resources where possible because often those groups have been working on their own grassroots marketing campaigns, or they are able to help spread our ad materials further into the community through their efforts.  Conversely, sometimes they need assistance with getting impactful marketing materials.  That is where we can hopefully share our efforts.

	62. 
	14
	4.2.3
	Q.
This section specifies offeror must provide examples of past production work, including three print advertisements and two :30 second television advertisements or public service announcements. At least one print example and one broadcast example must come from the same campaign. 
What materials qualify as “print examples”? May materials include a poster, newsletter, billboard or brochure? 

A. Print advertisement examples may include posters, newsletters, billboards, brochures, newspaper ads, magazine ads, even a print out of a stationary web ad, etc.  A broader definition would be any self-contained piece that does not have a movement or audio component to it (i.e. no web ads that cycle through multiple slides).

	63. 
	17
	6.1
	Q.
Can you name the members of the selection committee and state each member’s job title?

A.
The committee has not yet been selected at this time.

	64. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
If a specific media outlet could demonstrate that they held a sufficient statewide market share and could singularly reach the majority of Montanans, could that organization be considered as a contender for this RFP?
A.
Yes.

	65. 
	14
	4.2.3
	Q.
If the above question were to be that a statewide media organization (A Television Network in this case) was deemed an acceptable candidate, could the 3 print work examples be substituted with Digital Print Examples (i.e. internet advertisements)?

A.
Yes.  Print advertisement examples may include posters, newsletters, billboards, brochures, newspaper ads, magazine ads, even a print out of a stationary web ad, etc.  A broader definition would be any self-contained piece that does not have a movement or audio component to it (i.e. no web ads that cycle through multiple slides).

	66. 
	
	
	Q.
Is there currently an incumbent involved in this project?

A.
No, the current administration has not partnered with any advertising agency or firm to provide media/marketing services for this issue.

	67. 
	
	
	Q.
Are there current or prior campaigns the state wishes bidders to review as a reference point?

A.
No.

	68. 
	
	
	Q.
Please describe the state’s interest in maximizing earned media coverage as part of the media campaign.

A.
Earned media is seen as an essential part of maximizing public awareness and discourse on the issue of prescription drug abuse prevention.  That is why the state wishes to take full advantage of press releases, community events, op-ed pieces and any other opportunities that arise for coverage.

	69. 
	11
	3.1.1
	Q.
Of adults 35-60; Native Americans; current and former military and students aged 12-22, what is the primary target audience the state wishes to initially focus on? What are the demographics of the 484 Montanans who died from prescription drug overdose as well as the 7200 hospital/emergency encounters?

A.
Most likely adults ages 35-60, although the state will take the advisement of the awardee into account.  Please refer to the demographic documents accompanying this RFP.

	70. 
	11
	3.11
	Q.
Will this campaign only focus on prescription drugs or will it address other drugs, such as heroin?

A.
It will only focus on prescription drugs, but addressing addictive behaviors (which may involve multiple substances in some addicts) is a topic that the state may wish to cover.

	71. 
	11
	3.12
	Q.
In what locations would the state seek guerilla marketing strategies?

A.   The specific locations would be identified while working with the awardee, but a mix of urban and rural locations is desirable.

	72. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
Is the State seeking a campaign that focuses more on legal ramifications or public heath ramifications or prescription drug misuse?

A.
This is something that will probably need to be determined for each demographic, to see which message resonates the most with each group.  The state is not opposed to any of these specific ideas.

	73. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
Does the state currently have an Overdose Prevention Plan?

A.
The Attorney General’s Office is currently working on a number of efforts designed to support prescription drug abuse prevention, however I am not aware if the efforts meet the definition of an Overdose Prevention Plan.
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